


DRAFT MINUTES 



TOWN OF VERNON 
Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) 

Virtual Meeting Notice 
Thursday, September 17, 2020, 7:30 PM 

 

VIA Zoom Meeting 

Draft Minutes 

 
1. Call to Order & Roll Call by Roland Klee, Chairman at 7:31 PM. 

• Regular members present: Roland Klee, Joseph Miller arrived at 7:41 PM, Mike Mitchell, and 
Iris Mullan  
• Alternate Member: Robin Lockwood sitting for Wes Shorts 
• Absent Members: Susan Reudgen, Jesse Schoolnik and Wes Shorts 
• Staff present: George McGregor, Town Planner 
• Recording secretary: Jill Rocco 

  
2. Administrative Actions/Requests  
 

2.1 Amendment/Adoption of Agenda - Additional business to be considered under agenda 
item #6 “Other Business” requires Commission vote 

 
Robin Lockwood motioned to ADOPT the agenda. Iris Mullan seconded and the motion carried  
unanimously. 
 
2.2 Approval of the Minutes from the September 3, 2020 
 
Mike Mitchell made a motion to APPROVE the minutes with changes from the  
September 3, 2020 meeting. Iris Mullan seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. New Application(s) for receipt, if any: 
 
 NONE 
 
4. Public Hearing(s) and Action on Application 
 
 NONE 
 
5. 8-24 Referrals 
 
 5.1 Town of Vernon-98 East Main St. (Parcel ID: 40-0117-0005), acquisition of property 
 
 George McGregor, Town Planner, gave a summary of the referral 
 
 Discussion ensued 
 

Robin Lockwood made a motion that the Towns request for 8-24 referral for 98 East Main St. 
(Parcel ID: 40-0117-0005), acquisition of property to be found consistent with the POCD.  Mike 
Mitchell seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
  
 



6.  Plan of Conservation and Development Update 
 

George McGregor, Town Planner, gave and update in regards to the questionnaire sent to all 
commissions and department heads. 
 
Discussion ensued 
 

7. Other Business/Discussion 
 
 NONE 
 
8. Adjournment 
 

Joseph Miller made a motion to ADJOURN at 7:45 PM. Robin Lockwood seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

              
 
 
 
 
Jill Rocco 
Recording Secretary         



APPLICATION 

 (PZ-2020-10) 

 



Name of Development:
APH Hair Stylist

274 Talco$ville Rd
a/k/a 1 Allan Dr

Recently Installed 
Tra(c Light
& Turning Lanes





APH Hair Stylist, LLC

155 Windermere Ave. Unit 2203

Ellington, CT 06029

Allen’s Cell: 860-944-4201
Alice’s Cell: 860-643-5225

Managing Member, Alice P. House

APH Hair Stylist, LLC

Allen’s Cell: 860-944-4201
Alice’s Cell: 860-643-5225

155 Windermere Ave. Unit 2203

Ellington, CT 06029

Allen’s Email: houseall@cox.net
Alice’s Email: shamrock.house64@gmail.com

Alice P. House & Allen A. House

APH Hair Stylist, LLC

Allen’s Email: houseall@cox.net

Alice’s Email: shamrock.house64@gmail.com

Owners



274 Talcottville Rd, Vernon, CT 06066

X

2732636

X

10-015K-00028

Current: Commercial



Alice’s Cell: 860-643-5225
Allen’s Cell: 860-944-4201

APH Hair Stylist Salon Suites

Alice’s Email: shamrock.house64@gmail.com
Allen’s Email: houseall@cox.net

155 Windermere Ave. Unit 2203

Ellington, CT 06029

Alice & Allen House

Managing Member, Alice House of APH Hair Stylist LLC

APH Hair Stylist, LLC



Renovate Hair Salon and Expand Parking 

X

X

Demolition of existing 1/2 story/garage/breezeway/wood HC ramp, 
remodel remaining 768 sq. ft., building construction of 958 sq. ft. 
addition, utility service installation, site grading and LID drainage, 
gravity wall installation, reconfigure and resurface parking lot, 
sidewalks, construct curbs and planting beds, place top soil, seed 
green spaces, landscape planting beds, install signage.

X

X



X
4.9.4.15.2 The proposed structure is within two-hundred (200) feet of a residential structure. Applying to allow 113 feet from 
proposed structure and residential structure on east boundary property line. Hardship: Existing lot configuration.
4.9.4.15.3 The proposed development has any off-street parking or loading spaces within one-hundred (100) feet of a residential 
structure.  Applying to allow 72 feet from proposed parking spaces and residential structure on east boundary property line. Hardship: 
Existing lot configuration. Note: The installation of gravity wall and lot elevation difference help to mitigate the possibility of residential 
disturbance.









 

August 18, 2020 
 
George McGregor, Town Planner 
Vernon Planning and Zoning Commission 
55 West Street 
Vernon, CT 06066 
 
Re: Site Plan of Development and Special Permits 
      APH Hair Stylist, LLC 
      274 Talcottville Road a/k/a 1 Allan Drive 
      Vernon, CT 06066 
 
Plan of Development (POD) Narrative 
 
The applicant proposes to renovate an existing hair salon previously operated as the Hair Gallery, upon the 274 
Talcottville Road parcel. All non-conforming portions of the existing structure will be taken down and a 1,162 sq. ft. 
addition added to the remaining 768 sq. ft. first story structure. Two lot set back variances and demolition permit 
have been approved for the POD. See attached ZBA-2020-02 certificate and demo permit DP-2020-0006. The salon 
capacity is increasing from 4 to 8 operator stations and the parking lot from 8 spaces to 19 spaces. The finished hair 
salon will be reconnected to public utilities; WPCA sanitary sewer, CWC water, Eversource Electric and Gas, Comcast 
Business, and a state-of-the-art CT net metering solar array installed on the flat roof to reduce carbon emissions. 
 
Also included with the application are location improvement A2 survey sheets containing details for existing 
conditions and proposed site grading, LID drainage, gravity wall, driveway, parking spaces, landscaping, erosion 
and sediment control, architectural renderings, building elevations, lighting, and waste management plans. 
 
Special Permits 
 
In connection with its proposed development, the Applicant also seeks three special permits. (1) Per Section 15 of 
the Regulations, for excavation involving more than 50 cubic yards. The sole purpose of the excavation is to prepare 
the site and complete hair salon renovations in accordance with the POD. (2) Per Section 4.9 of the Regulations, for 
reduced thresholds of proposed hair salon structure and parking spaces within (200) feet and (100) feet of a 
residential structure on the east boundary property line. Hardship: Existing lot conditions. Note: The installation of 
gravity wall and lot elevation difference help to mitigate the possibility of residential disturbance.  

 

92 Hunt Rd, Columbia, CT 06237 
Call: 860-463-1940 
Email:  guylebrun1975@yahoo.com 



 

 

92 Hunt Rd, Columbia, CT 06237 
Call: 860-463-1940 
Email:  guylebrun1975@yahoo.com 

 
Traffic Impact Statement 
 
The applicant is proposing a plan of development to increase the capacity of an existing hair salon. The hair salon 
will remain to be accessed by the existing curb cut off of Allan Dr and there are no proposed changes to the curb 
cut. During the first quarter of 2020 Vernon LTA and CT OSTA/DOT installed a state-of-the-art traffic light at the 
intersection of Route 83, Allan Dr, and Trail Run Apartment Complex. Customers will use the Route 83 traffic light 
to access the salon parking lot entrance/exit off of Allan Dr. This corner lot parcel is a direct beneficiary of the 
advanced traffic light signaling to control safe ingress and egress access to Allan Dr curb cut. The proposed 
parking lot design implements a one-way drive loop around the building with a redesigned arrangement of 19 
parking spaces. In my opinion, taking into account the traffic light and proposed parking lot improvements, the 
increase in daily customer activity generated at the site will not have a major impact to traffic and can be safely 
accommodated. 
 
Salon business hours are 8am – 7pm on Tues, Weds, Thurs, and 8am – 5pm on Fri, Sat. 
 
Existing and proposed traffic pattern summary. 
 

 Existing Proposed 
Salon Square Footage 880 sq. ft. 1,727 sq. ft. 
Parking Spaces 8 19 
Number of salon operator stations 4 8 
Avg number of customers per hour 4 8 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Jake Le Brun 
LLC Managing Member 
 
 





















A
P

H
 H

a
ir

 S
ty

li
st

 S
a
lo

n
 S

u
it

e
s

::
 A

P
H

 H
a
ir

 S
ty

li
st

 L
LC

  
::

  
2

7
4

 T
a
lc

o
tt

vi
ll
e
 R

d
, 

V
e
rn

o
n

, 
C

T
 0

6
0

6
6

  
::

  
A

u
g

u
st

 3
1

, 
2

0
2

0
  
::

3

SCALE  ::  1/4" = 1'-0"
WEST ELEVATION - FRONT2

18’ - 3" 
Roof Peak

18’ - 3" 
Roof Peak

0'
Finished Grade

0'
Finished Grade

SCALE  ::  1/4" = 1'-0"
NORTH ELEVATION - #280 SIDE1

SCALE  ::  1/4" = 1'-0"
EAST ELEVATION - BACK4

SCALE  ::  1/4" = 1'-0"
SOUTH ELEVATION - ALLAN DR. SIDE3

Top of Parapet Wall

Top of Flat Roof

Top of Wall

Top of Foundation
First Floor

10
’

6’ 
6”

10
”

11”

Scupper
Roof Drains

Roof Top HVAC
Hidden Behind Parapet Walls

Solar Panel Array
Hidden Behind Parapet Walls

White Washed Brick

Nichiboard Smoo:
Fiber Cement Board Siding

Buechel Ashlar
Natural Stone Venner

35” x 45” Egress
Casement Window

35” x 45” Egress
Casement Window





  

Proposed Lighting Plan 
Name of Development: APH Hair Stylist 
Site: 274 Talcottville Rd, Vernon, CT 
 
Exterior Building Lighting 
 

The Millennium RAS12-GA-RNG15 R Series Gooseneck wall mount light fixture has been selected to 
illuminate sidewalks, parking, and landscaping around the building. The fixture options are configured 
with 12” round angled shade and 14.5” gooseneck. Fixture and bulb technical specification sheets are 
included at end of this plan document. 
 

Light Location Qty Lumen 
Output 

Input 
Power 

Input 
Voltage 

Color 
Temp 
(CCT) 

Color 
Rendering 
Index (CRI) 

Front Wall - East Facing 
Mounted 11 ft above grade 

3 2550lm 22W 120V 3000K 80 

Right Side Wall - South Facing 
Mounted 11 ft above grade 

2 2550lm 22W 120V 3000K 80 

Left Side Wall - North Facing 
Mounted 11 ft above grade 

2 2550lm 22W 120V 3000K 80 

Back Side Wall - East Facing  
Mounted 11 ft above grade 

3 2550lm 22W 120V 3000K 80 

 

 
 

 



  

Gravity Wall Lighting 
 

The VOLT Low Voltage Landscape Lighting 6” VSH-668-4-BBZ undercover hardscape light fixture has 
been selected to illuminate the parking and landscaping along the gravity wall. Fixture and bulb 
technical specification sheets are included at end of this plan document. 
 

Light Location Qty Lumen 
Output 

Input 
Power 

Input 
Voltage 

Color 
Temp 
(CCT) 

Color 
Rendering 
Index (CRI) 

Across Gravity Wall Facing 
West Towards Building 
Mounted 6 ft above grade 
with a 10 ft spacing between 
fixture centers 

9 300lm 3W 9-15V 2700K 80-85 

Right Side Gravity Wall Return 
Mounted 4 ft above grade and 
5 ft out from wall corner 

1 300lm 3W 9-15V 2700K 80-85 

Left Side Gravity Wall Return 
Mounted 4 ft above grade and 
5 ft out from wall corner 

1 300lm 3W 9-15V 2700K 80-85 

 
 

 
 
 
  



22 www.millenniumlighting.com

UL LISTED FOR WET LOCATIONS

Angle Shades Wire Guards

��ß
Angle
Shades RAS12-SG

Shade Only.
Shown with optional 
RGN15-SG Goose Neck

RAS12-SR
Shade Only.
Shown with optional 
RGN15-SR Goose Neck

RAS12-GA
Shade Only.

Shown with optional 
RGN15-GA Goose Neck

and RWG12-GA Wire Guard

Galvanized 
ÀQLVKHV�PD\�EH�

inconsistant

R Series

RAS12

ITEM # WIDTH LAMPS WIRE FINISH

 RAS12-ABR ��ß Med. 200W A21 ���ß Architectural Bronze

 RAS12-GA ��ß Med. 200W A21 ���ß Galvanized

 RAS12-SB ��ß Med. 200W A21 ���ß Satin Black

 RAS12-SG ��ß Med. 200W A21 ���ß Satin Green

 RAS12-SR ��ß Med. 200W A21 ���ß Satin Red

 RAS12-WH ��ß Med. 200W A21 ���ß White

������ß

��ß

RWG12

��ß

�ß

ITEM # WIDTH FINISH

 RWG12-ABR ��ß Architectural Bronze

 RWG12-GA ��ß Galvanized

 RWG12-SB ��ß Satin Black

 RWG12-SG ��ß Satin Green

 RWG12-SR ��ß Satin Red

 RWG12-WH ��ß White

RAS12-SB
Shade Only.
Shown with optional 
RGN15-SB Goose Neck

RAS12-WH
Shade Only.

Shown with optional 
RGN15-WH Goose Neck

RAS12-ABR
Shade Only.

Shown with optional 
RGN15-ABR Goose Neck

and RWG12-ABR Wire Guard

EASY TO ORDER:
1.  Choose a Shade
2.  Choose a Goose Neck
3.  Wire Guard Optional



MILLENNIUM LTG

ATL, GA

ITEM # ID LENGTH FINISH
   RGN12-ABR ���ß ��ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN12-GA ���ß ��ß Galvanized
   RGN12-SB ���ß ��ß Satin Black
   RGN12-SG ���ß ��ß Satin Green
   RGN12-SR ���ß ��ß Satin Red
   RGN12-WH ���ß ��ß White
   RGN15-ABR ���ß ������ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN15-GA ���ß ������ß Galvanized
   RGN15-SB ���ß ������ß Satin Black
   RGN15-SG ���ß ������ß Satin Green
   RGN15-SR ���ß ������ß Satin Red
   RGN15-WH ���ß ������ß White
   RGN22-ABR ���ß ������ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN22-GA ���ß ������ß Galvanized
   RGN22-SB ���ß ������ß Satin Black
   RGN22-SG ���ß ������ß Satin Green
   RGN22-SR ���ß ������ß Satin Red
   RGN22-WH ���ß ������ß White
   RGN23-ABR ���ß ��ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN23-GA ���ß ��ß Galvanized
   RGN23-SB ���ß ��ß Satin Black
   RGN23-SG ���ß ��ß Satin Green
   RGN23-SR ���ß ��ß Satin Red
   RGN23-WH ���ß ��ß White
   RGN24-ABR ���ß ��ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN24-GA ���ß ��ß Galvanized
   RGN24-SB ���ß ��ß Satin Black
   RGN24-SG ���ß ��ß Satin Green
   RGN24-SR ���ß ��ß Satin Red
   RGN24-WH ���ß ��ß White
   RGN30-ABR ���ß ��ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN30-GA ���ß ��ß Galvanized
   RGN30-SB ���ß ��ß Satin Black
   RGN30-SG ���ß ��ß Satin Green
   RGN30-SR ���ß ��ß Satin Red
   RGN30-WH ���ß ��ß White
   RGN41-ABR ���ß ��ß Architectural Bronze
   RGN41-GA ���ß ��ß Galvanized
   RGN41-SB ���ß ��ß Satin Black
   RGN41-SG ���ß ��ß Satin Green
   RGN41-SR ���ß ��ß Satin Red
   RGN41-WH ���ß ��ß White

�����ß
�ß

������ß

RGN22

Back Plate included
with goose neck 

��ß

��ß�����ß

RGN12

��ß

�����ß

��ß

RGN23

��ß

������ß

��ß

RGN24

��ß

��ß

RGN30

�ß

��ß

RGN41

Goose Necks   (Actual Photos Shown on Page 58)

 23

�����ß
�ß

������ß

RGN15



Dimmable

Enclosed Fixture Suitable

Energy Efficient

Damp Rated

High Output

LED EA21-22W1000eh
Bulb Class: A21

Product Description
LED EA21-22W1000eh, Omni-directional A21, replaces conventional 150 Watt incandescent bulbs 
delivering more brightness (lumens) for less energy (Watts). With lower energy consumption levels you 
will be able to experience considerable energy savings throughout the years. LED EA21-22W1000eh 
design reduces internal bulb heat providing greater durability and constant bulb performance. Look 
for EA21-22W1020eh for Warm White (2700K), EA21-22W1040eh for Bright White (4000K) and EA21-
22W1050eh for Cool White (5000K). Enjoy features such as: Instant-on, dimming options, High Output, 
Energy Efficient, and Enclosed Fixture Suitable. 

5
YEAR

   Estimated Energy Cost:   $2.64 per year

*Note: Design, features and specifications subject to change without notice. Some features may not be available on all models. 
Please visit www.eurilighting.com or call 1-310-787-1100 for more information.

Speci!cations

Input Power Input Voltage Lumen Output Beam Angle Center Beam CCT

22 W 120V 2550 lm 210° N/A 3000 K

CRI Luminous E"cacy Power Factor Input Current Base Lamp Lifespan

80 115.9 lm/W 0.7 0.2 A E26 25,000 Hrs.

Product Features Product Dimensions Product Photometric Data

150W
REPLACEMENT

2.83”

5.47”

-/+ 180

0

350

250

300

200

150

100

50

30-30

-60

-90

-120 120

150-150

60

90

Warehouse-Lighting.com 
2750 South 163rd St 

New Berlin, WI 53151 

Warehouse-Lighting.com 
Phone: 888-454-4480 

info@warehouse-lighting.com 



PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS

 
© Copyright 2019, VOLT® Lighting, Lutz, FL USA 33549 • All rights reserved • 813.978.3700 

w w w . v o l t l i g h t i n g . c o m

Project Name __________________________________ Date ___________

Type or Model __________________________________ Qty ____________

VOLT® Low Voltage Landscape Lighting
6” Undercover Hardscape Light – VHS-668-4-BBZ

VOLT’s Undercover Hardscape light is truly a one-of-a-kind 
SUR�JUDGH��TXDOLW\�ODQGVFDSH�OLJKWLQJ�À[WXUH��7KLV�ORZ�YROWDJH�
OLJKW�LV�EHVW�XVHG�LQ�DUHDV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�D�ORZ�SURÀOH�OLJKW�
À[WXUH�WKDW�LOOXPLQDWHV�GRZQZDUG��([DPSOH�DSSOLFDWLRQV�
include railings, retaining walls, counter tops (for outdoor 
kitchens) and even property walls/fences. These luminaires 
are constructed of high quality solid cast brass, with premium 
LQWHUQDO�FRPSRQHQWV�DV�ZHOO��7KLV�À[WXUH�LV�FRPSOHWHO\�
sealed to protect from moisture and the environment. The 
frosted lens provides for a beautifully even soft light that 
compliments any application.

 Z Solid Brass Construction

 Z 3UH�DJHG�ÀQLVK��D�QDWXUDO�SDWLQD�WKDW�GRHV�QRW�FRUURGH

 Z Beryllium copper socket – more corrosion resistant than 
copper

 Z Protective brass tube to protect lead wire from crushing 
when installed in stone, concrete or masonry

 Z Frosted lens for smooth photometric results

Product Description

)HDWXUHV�	�%HQHÀWV

Product Dimensions

 Z Construction: Brass 

 Z Finish: Bronze 

 Z Lead Wire: 16AWG

 Z Mounting (included): mounting plate with 4 screw holes

 Z Lens: Frosted lens 

 Z Light Source (sold separately): Bi-pin (LED or Halogen)

 Z Operating Voltage: 12VAC 

 Z Powered by: VOLT’s Low Voltage Transformer

6SHFLÀFDWLRQV

Lifetime Warranty

Warranty

8” 

3.52” 

1.28” 

2.28” 

1.24” 

File #E466348

&HUWLÀFDWLRQV

File #E466348LISTED
Max 20 Watts Max 20 Watts



  

3W G4 LED Bi-Pin 2700K (20w Halogen Replacement) 
Introducing VOLT®'s new 2700K line of low voltage LED G4 bi-pins. The new 2700 kelvin 
LED Bi-Pin fits most fixtures that can take a standard size G4 Bi-pin. This LED light bulb is 
specifically designed for landscape lighting and outdoor low voltage lighting. More powerful 
than our small G4 LED. These lamps are encapsulated to help keep moisture away from the 
LED diodes; with slots on the capsule to help draw heat away from the lamp to increase its 
lifespan. Great for applications when you are looking for a warmer light (in comparison to the 
3000K). 

3W G4 LED Bi-Pin 2700K (20w Halogen Replacement) 
Features & Benefits: 

• Replaces 20-Watt Halogen G4 Bi-Pin Bulb 
• Bulb Type G4 Bi-Pin Lamp 
• Lumens: 300 
• Input Voltage: 9 – 15v 
• Energy Consumption: 3 watts 
• Color Temperature: 2700K (CCT Warm White – most popular) 
• Color Rendering Index (CRI): 80-85 
• Light Source: 33 SMD 2835 LED 
• Lifespan: 40,000 hours (L70) 
• Warranty: Lifetime Warranty (Residential), 10 Years (Commercial) 
• ETL Listed 
• IMPORTANT *** All VOLT® LED fixtures and retrofit bulbs must be used with magnetic 

transformers such as our VOLT® transformers (they are not compatible with electronic 
transformers). They must be used with AC (they are not compatible with DC voltage). 
Failure to comply with any of these factors will destroy the fixture or lamp and void the 
warranty. 

 























STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

PLANNING 
 DEPARTMENT 

 
 

14 PARK PLACE, VERNON, CT 06066 
(860) 870-3640 

gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 

TOWN OF VERNON 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM  
 

TO:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
FROM:  George K. McGregor, Town Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PZ-2020-10, 274 Talcottville Rd. Site Plan and Special Permits for the renovation of a 

Hair Salon 
 
DATE:  October 1, 2020 
 
 
Request and Background 
 
APH Hair Stylists, LLC 
(“Applicant”) requests Site Plan 
and Special Permit approvals in 
order renovate and remodel a 
hair salon located at 274 
Talcottville Rd. (Assessor ID: Map 
10, Block 015K, Parcel 00028). 
The property is 16,353 sq. ft. in 
size and zoned Commercial. 
Pursuant to Section 4.9.2.9, 
personal services are permitted 
by right. The proximity to 
residential uses trigger, in this 
case, special permit items. 
 
 
Site Plan 
 
The Applicant intends to improve a previously established hair salon site though partial demolition and 
addition to the existing structure for a total size of +-1,727 sq. ft. and plans to increase capacity to the 
salon stations as well as a new parking expansion from 8 to 19 spaces. Access to the site is via Allan Dr., 
where a new traffic light has recently been installed. 
 
The Applicant received two setback variances (38’ front and 39’ side) from the Zoning Board of Appeals 
in February 2020 (ZBA 2020-02). The Site Plan meets the requirements of the Zoning Regulations and 
adds additional design elements, including a retaining wall and robust landscaping (arborvitae along the 



PZ-2020-10   274 Talcottville Rd.               2 
October 1, 2020 
 
 
real property line adjacent to residential). A full architectural design package accompanies the site plan 
submission. 

 
Conceptual Site Plan 

 
 
Special Permit Review  

 
Many applications with site renovations along 
Talcottville Rd. require special permits due to 
the proximity of residential zoning to the 
commercial corridor. In this case, along with 
the typical site special permit for grading over 
50 cubic yards (Section 15), the proposal 
requires special permit approval for a 
structure within 200 feet of a residential use 
(Section 4.9.4.15.2) and parking within 100 
feet of a residential use (Section 4.9.4.15.3). 
 
The Applicant has attempted to address the 
corridor proximity with rear plantings and 
decorative fencing which appears an 
improvement over the existing condition. 
  
In order to approve each special permit, the 
Commission must find that the applicant 
meets the relevant general special permit 



PZ-2020-10   274 Talcottville Rd.               3 
October 1, 2020 
 
 
criteria of Section 17.3.1, specifically: 
 

17.3.1.1 It shall not create a hazardous condition relative to public health and safety; 
 
17.3.1.2 It shall be compatible with neighboring uses; 
 
17.3.1.3 It shall not create a nuisance; 
 
17.3.1.4 It shall not hinder the future sound development of the community; 
 
17.3.1.5 It shall conform to all applicable sections of this ordinance; 
 

Staff finds these thresholds have been met by the application. 
 
 

Design Review Commission  
 
The Design Review Commission reviewed the application at a meeting on September 23, 2020. The 
Commission recommended approval of the design elements, as proposed, unanimously1. 
 
Staff Review 
 
Review comments from the Police Department, the Zoning Office, and the Town Engineer are attached 
to this memorandum, along with the Applicant response. The are no identified outstanding issues at this 
time. 
 
 
Analysis and Recommendation 
 
Planning and Zoning Town Staff have reviewed the application and find that the request generally meets 
the special permit criteria established in 17.3.1. and the Site Plan requirements of Section 14. The 
proposed location, in the Commercial Zoning District, is appropriate for this type of use, especially when 
factoring the proposed architecture and landscaping design commitments offered by the Applicant.  
 
 
Draft Motions 
 

A. I move that the Planning and Zoning Commission Approve PZ-2020-10, a Site Plan of 
Development with Special Permits located at 274 Talcottville Rd. This approval is based upon 
a finding the application meets the site plan requirements of Section 14 and that the special 
permits requested meet and exceed the review criteria set forth in Section 15 and Section 
17.3.1, and is subject to the conditions of approval dated October 1, 2020. 

OR 
B. I move [an alternate motion] 

 

                                                 
1 DRC memorandum 9-24-20 



PZ-2020-10   274 Talcottville Rd.               4 
October 1, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft Conditions of Approval 
PZ 2020-10 274 Talcottville Rd. 

APH Hairstylists, LLC 
October 1, 2020 

 
1. The property shall be developed in substantial conformance with the Site Plan Set dated 8/2020 

(Sheets 1-8) prepared by Messier Survey, LLC (with Raymond Nelson, PE). 
 

2. The Property Shall be develop in substantial conformance to the Architectural Elevations for 
“APH Hair Stylists Salon Suites” dated August 31, 2020. 
 

3. The property shall be developed in substantial conformance to the “Retaining Wall Design” set 
sheets 1 and 2, dated August 26, 2020, prepared by Eric Merluzzi, PE. 
 

4. Prior to the commencement of any site work, the applicant or his/her agent shall submit to the 
Town Planner an instrument of financial guarantee, as determined by the Town Engineer, in a 
form acceptable to the PZC for Erosion and Sedimentation Control. 

 
5. The above conditions are in addition to the standard conditions and stipulations for all site 

development projects. 
 



APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

 
FROM: jkenny@vernon-ct.gov 
 
TO:  
 
DATE: 09/01/2020 
  
 APPLICANT: AMERICAN JOINT VENTURES LLC 
  
 PROJECT: APH Hair Stylists 
  
 LOCATION: 274 TALCOTTVILLE RD   
 
 
My comments in regard to the application submitted to the Inland Wetland Commission (IWC) 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) are: 
 
_____ NO COMMENT 
 
_____  COMMENTS ATTACHED 
 
__X__  PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: 
 
New proposed business is consistent with the approved prior commercial property.  No new curb cuts 
proposed.  Increased traffic flow is negligible for use and can easily access Allen Drive curb cut due to 
signalization of the RT 83/Allen Drive intersection.  No need for Traffic Authority review. 
 
 
A.H. reviewed on 9/23/2020 
Received positive review of proposed traffic statement. 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________  DATE:____________________ 



APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

 
FROM: dsmith@vernon-ct.gov 
 
TO:  
 
DATE: 09/15/2020 
  
 APPLICANT: AMERICAN JOINT VENTURES LLC 
  
 PROJECT: APH Hair Stylists 
  
 LOCATION: 274 TALCOTTVILLE RD   
 
 
My comments in regard to the application submitted to the Inland Wetland Commission (IWC) 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) are: 
 
_____ NO COMMENT 
 
_____  COMMENTS ATTACHED 
 
__X__  PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: 
 
the plans are comprehensive and appear well thought out.  Porous pavement is proposed to 
reduce/eliminate off site impacts due to stormwater runoff.  It appears that a collar of conventional 
pavement is proposed for each of the two basins in the rear of the property.  This may be problematic to 
construct given the location in the middle of the porous pavement and supporting base courses.  If these 
collars are not easily constructed, the porous pavement can extend right up to the basins if necessary. 
Sediment and Erosion Control measures appear adequate.  Given the small size of the parcel, extra care 
in coordination of activities and placement of these measures to minimize conflicts. 
 
A.H. reviewed on 9/23/2020 
I agree with using porous pavement up to and around CB#4 & CB#5. 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________  DATE:____________________ 



APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

 
FROM: amarchese@vernon-ct.gov 
 
TO:  
 
DATE: 09/22/2020 
  
 APPLICANT: AMERICAN JOINT VENTURES LLC 
  
 PROJECT: APH Hair Stylists 
  
 LOCATION: 274 TALCOTTVILLE RD   
 
 
My comments in regard to the application submitted to the Inland Wetland Commission (IWC) 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) are: 
 
_____ NO COMMENT 
 
_____  COMMENTS ATTACHED 
 
__X__  PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: 
 
A.H. reviewed on 9/23/2020 
 

1) The existing pylon sign is not located on the property. Zoning regulation 16.1.5 says that no part 
of any sign shall be erected within (10) feet from any property line. 
 
The existing “Hair Gallery” sign will be removed. Proposed new sign will be installed on Rte. 83 
facing building parapet wall as shown in the elevation and architecture renderings. Also, a detailed 
sign proposal is in the process of being completed by Signarama vendor. Will forward detailed sign 
drawing and plan before PZC meeting. 
 
2) Zoning regulation 14.1.2.2.17 says method of refuse storage and disposal shall be shown on a site 
plan. There is not a dumpster shown on the proposed plan. 

 
There is no outside dumpster in this plan, because refuse storage and disposal will use apartment 
vertical trash management system located in the basement fire rated waste and re-cycle equipment 
room. This room contains chute feed apartment waste compactor, plastic safety baler, and covered 
bins to perform automatic 10 to 1 compaction of all salon generated waste and recyclables.  Full 
bags/bales will be taken away by a cleaning service trash hauler. See attached proposed waste and 
recycling plan for more detail. 
 
3) Along the southern area of the proposed site plan along Allan Drive, the applicant proposed to do 
landscaping, seeding and a right turn only traffic sign. It appears that this area is owned by the town 
and work should not be performed in this area and the traffic sign shall be 10 feet from the 
boundary line. 
 



APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

Removed proposed right turn only traffic sign and added pavement markings: white right arrow with 
“ONLY” text and white channelizing lines to direct traffic flow. The previous property owners 
expanded their bituminous parking into the town owned land. Our plans include returning this to its 
original seeded state. 
 
4)  Zoning regulation 14.1.6.9 says lighting plans to be approved by the commission. There does not 
appear to be a plan on the proposed submitted plan. 
 
Photometric analysis and fixture proposal are in the process of being completed by LED Lighting 
Supply vendor. Will forward detailed drawings and fixture specifications before PZC meeting. 
 
5) Zoning regulation 3.25 requires sidewalks installed for all new developments. The proposed 
sidewalk shown along Talcottville Road appears to be located on state owned property. Does this 
require state approval? 
 
Yes, the proposed sidewalk plan will be submitted to CT DOT website for encroachment permit 
approval prior to starting sidewalk construction. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________  DATE:____________________ 





APPLICATION 

(PZ-2020-11) 

 











































One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.lithonia.com
© 2011-2020 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

DSX1-LED

Rev. 07/30/20

Page 1 of 8
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

D-Series Size 1
LED Area Luminaire

Catalog 

Number

Notes

Type

Introduction
The modern styling of the D-Series is striking 
yet unobtrusive - making a bold, progressive 
statement even as it blends seamlessly with its 
environment. The D-Series distills the benefits 
of the latest in LED technology into a high 
performance, high efficacy, long-life luminaire. 

The outstanding photometric performance 
results in sites with excellent uniformity, greater 
pole spacing and lower power density. It is 
ideal for replacing up to 750W metal halide in 
pedestrian and area lighting applications with 
typical energy savings of 65% and expected 
service life of over 100,000 hours.

Hit the Tab key or mouse over the page to see all interactive elements.

L

H

L

H1

WW

H

H2

Ordering Information EXAMPLE: DSX1 LED P7 40K T3M MVOLT SPA NLTAIR2 PIRHN DDBXD

DSX1 LED

Series LEDs Color temperature Distribution Voltage Mounting

DSX1 LED Forward optics
P1 P4 1 P7 1

P2 P5 1 P8
P3 P6 1 P9 1

Rotated optics
P10 2 P12 2

P11 2 P13 1,2

30K 3000 K
40K 4000 K
50K 5000 K

T1S Type I short 
(Automotive)

T2S Type II short
T2M Type II medium
T3S Type III short
T3M Type III medium
T4M Type IV medium
TFTM Forward throw 

medium

T5VS Type V very short 3

T5S Type V short 3

T5M Type V medium 3

T5W Type V wide 3

BLC Backlight control 4

LCCO Left corner cutoff 4

RCCO Right corner cutoff  4

MVOLT 5

120 6

208 6

240 6

277 6

347 6

480 6

Shipped included
SPA Square pole mounting
RPA Round pole mounting 7

WBA Wall bracket 3

SPUMBA Square pole universal mounting adaptor 8

RPUMBA Round pole universal mounting adaptor 8

Shipped separately
KMA8 DDBXD U Mast arm mounting bracket adaptor 

(specify finish) 9

Specifications
EPA: 1.01 ft2

(0.09 m2)

Length: 33”
(83.8 cm)

Width: 13”
(33.0 cm)

Height H1: 7-1/2”
(19.0 cm)

Height H2: 3-1/2”

Weight  
(max):

27 lbs
(12.2 kg)

Control options Other options Finish (required) 

Shipped installed
NLTAIR2 nLight AIR generation 2 enabled 10

PIRHN Network, high/low motion/ambient sensor 11

PER NEMA twist-lock receptacle only (controls ordered separate) 12

PER5 Five-pin receptacle only (controls ordered separate) 12,13

PER7 Seven-pin receptacle only (controls ordered separate) 12,13

DMG 0-10v dimming wires pulled outside fixture (for use with an 
external control, ordered separately) 14

DS Dual switching 15,16,17

PIR High/low, motion/ambient sensor, 8-15’ mounting height, 
ambient sensor enabled at 5fc 17,18

PIRH High/low, motion/ambient sensor, 15-30’ mounting height, 
ambient sensor enabled at 5fc 17,18

PIR1FC3V High/low, motion/ambient sensor, 8-15’ mounting height, 
ambient sensor enabled at 1fc 17,18

PIRH1FC3V Bi-level, motion/ambient sensor, 15-30’ mounting height, 
ambient sensor enabled at 1fc 17,18

FAO Field adjustable output 17,19

Shipped installed
HS House-side shield 20

SF Single fuse (120, 277, 347V) 6

DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480V) 6

L90 Left rotated optics 2

R90 Right rotated optics 2

HA 50°C ambient operations 1

Shipped separately 
BS Bird spikes 21

EGS External glare shield

DDBXD Dark bronze
DBLXD Black
DNAXD Natural aluminum
DWHXD White
DDBTXD Textured dark bronze
DBLBXD Textured black
DNATXD Textured natural 

aluminum
DWHGXD Textured white

http://www.lithonia.com
http://www.acuitybrands.com/resources/tools-and-documents/architectural-colors


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.lithonia.com
© 2011-2020 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

DSX1-LED

Rev. 07/30/20

Page 2 of 8
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

Tenon O.D. Mounting Single Unit 2 @ 180 2 @ 90 3 @ 90 3 @120 4 @ 90
2-3/8" RPA AS3-5 190 AS3-5 280 AS3-5 290 AS3-5 390 AS3-5 320 AS3-5 490
2-7/8" RPA AST25-190 AST25-280 AST25-290 AST25-390 AST25-320 AST25-490

4" RPA AST35-190 AST35-280 AST35-290 AST35-390 AST35-320 AST35-490

Tenon Mounting Slipfitter

Drilling

Top of Pole

0.563”

2.650”

1.325”
0.400”
(2 PLCS)

Template #8

Ordering Information
NOTES
1 HA not available with P4, P5, P6, P7, P9 and P13. 
2 P10, P11, P12 or P13 and rotated optics (L90, R90) only available together.
3 Any Type 5 distribution with photocell, is not available with WBA.
4 Not available with HS.
5 MVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 120-277V (50/60 Hz).
6 Single fuse (SF) requires 120V, 277V or 347V. Double fuse (DF) requires 208V, 240V or 480V.
7 Suitable for mounting to round poles between 3.5” and 12” diameter. 
8 Universal mounting brackets intended for retrofit on existing, pre-drilled poles only. 1.5 G vibration load rating per ANCI C136.31. Only usable when pole’s drill pattern is NOT Lithonia template 

#8
9 Must order fixture with SPA option. Must be ordered as a separate accessory; see Accessories information. For use with 2-3/8” diameter mast arm (not included).
10 Must be ordered with PIRHN. Sensor cover available only in dark bronze, black, white and natural aluminum colors.
11 Must be ordered with NLTAIR2. For more information on nLight Air 2 visit this link.
12 Photocell ordered and shipped as a separate line item from Acuity Brands Controls. See accessories. Shorting cap included.
13 If ROAM® node required, it must be ordered and shipped as a separate line item from Acuity Brands Controls. Node with integral dimming.
14 DMG not available with PIRHN, PER5, PER7, PIR, PIRH, PIR1FC3V or PIRH1FC3V, FAO. 
15 Provides 50/50fixture operation via (2) independent drivers. Not available with PER, PER5, PER7, PIR or PIRH. Not available P1, P2, P3, P4 or P5.
16 Requires (2) separately switched circuits with isolated neutrol.
17 Reference Controls Option Default settings table on page 4.
18 Reference Motion Sensor table on page 4 to see functionality.
19 Not available with other dimming controls options
20 Not available with BLC, LCCO and RCCO distribution. Also available as a separate accessory; see Accessories information.
21 Must be ordered with fixture for factory pre-drilling. 
22 Requires luminaire to be specified with PER, PER5 or PER7 option. See Control Option Table on page 4.
23 For retrofit use only. Only usable when pole’s drill pattern is NOT Lithonia template #8

Accessories
Ordered and shipped separately. 

DLL127F 1.5 JU Photocell - SSL twist-lock (120-277V) 22

DLL347F 1.5 CUL JU Photocell - SSL twist-lock (347V) 22

DLL480F 1.5 CUL JU Photocell - SSL twist-lock (480V) 22

DSHORT SBK U Shorting cap 22

DSX1HS 30C U House-side shield for P1, P2, P3, P4 and P5 20

DSX1HS 40C U House-side shield for P6 and P7 20

DSX1HS 60C U House-side shield for P8, P9, P10, P11 and P12 20

PUMBA DDBXD U* Square and round pole universal mounting 
bracket (specify finish) 23

KMA8 DDBXD U Mast arm mounting bracket adaptor (specify 
finish) 9

DSX1EGS (FINISH) U External glare shield

For more control options, visit DTL and ROAM online.

Options

.50

73˚

12.05 12.476

.50

73˚

12.05 12.48

HANDHOLE ORIENTATION

A
Handhole

B

C

D

EGS - External Glare Shield

Drilling Template Minimum Acceptable Outside Pole Dimension
SPA #8 2-7/8” 2-7/8” 3.5” 3.5” 3” 3.5”
RPA #8 2-7/8” 2-7/8” 3.5” 3.5” 3” 3.5”
SPUMBA #5 2-7/8” 3” 4” 4” 3.5” 4”
RPUMBA #5 2-7/8” 3.5” 5” 5” 3.5” 5” 

Mounting Option Drilling Template Single 2 @ 180 2 @ 90 3 @ 90 3 @ 120 4 @ 90
Head Location Side B Side B & D Side B & C Side B, C & D Round Pole Only Side A, B, C & D
Drill Nomenclature #8 DM19AS DM28AS DM29AS DM39AS DM32AS DM49AS

1.75” for aluminum poles
2.75” for other pole types Fixture Quantity & Mounting  

Configuration Single DM19 2 @ 180 DM28 2 @ 90 DM29 3 @ 90 DM39 3 @ 120 DM32 4 @ 90 DM49

Mounting Type

DSX1 LED 1.013 2.025 1.945 3.038 2.850 3.749

DSX1 Area Luminaire - EPA
*Includes luminaire and integral mounting arm. Other tenons, arms, brackets or other accessories are not included in this EPA data.

http://www.lithonia.com
https://www.acuitybrands.com/products/controls/nlightair
http://www.acuitybrands.com/products/controls/dtl
http://www.acuitybrands.com/brands/controls/roam


One Lithonia Way • Conyers, Georgia 30012 • Phone: 1-800-705-SERV (7378) • www.lithonia.com
© 2011-2020 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved. 

DSX1-LED

Rev. 07/30/20

Page 3 of 8
COMMERCIAL OUTDOOR

To see complete photometric reports or download .ies files for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting’s D-Series Area Size 1 homepage. Photometric Diagrams
Isofootcandle plots for the DSX1 LED 60C 1000 40K. Distances are in units of mounting height (25’).

LEGEND

0.1 fc

0.5 fc

1.0 fc

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
21

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T1S

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
16

4B
 t

es
te

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 
IE

SN
A

 L
M

-7
9-

08
.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T2M

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
22

2 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T2S

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
27

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T3M

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
21

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T3S

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
16

4B
 t

es
te

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 
IE

SN
A

 L
M

-7
9-

08
.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T4M

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
22

2 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

TFTM

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
27

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T5VS

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
21

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T5S

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
16

4B
 t

es
te

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 
IE

SN
A

 L
M

-7
9-

08
.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T5M

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
22

2 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

T5W

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
27

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

BLC

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
21

1 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

IE
SN

A
 L

M
-7

9-
08

.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

LCCO

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

23
16

4B
 t

es
te

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 
IE

SN
A

 L
M

-7
9-

08
.

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

RCCO

http://www.lithonia.com
http://www.lithonia.com/commercial/d-series+area+size+1.html#.V4-Bt5MrLXQ














STAFF COMMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE 

TOWN PLANNER 
 

55 West Main St., VERNON, CT 06066-3291 
(860) 870-3640  

gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 
 
 

TOWN OF VERNON 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
FROM:  George K. McGregor, AICP, Town Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PZ 2020-11, CT Golf Land, 95 Hartford Tpke. 
 
DATE:  October 1, 2020 
 
 
Request & Background 
 
CT Golf Land LLC, has requested approval of a Site Plan of 
Development and a series of special permits for site 
grading, new construction, demolition, and other 
activities on property located at 95 Hartford Tpke. 
(Assessor ID: Map 1, Block 158, Parcel 00095). The 
Applicant intends to rejuvenate the Golf Land Property 
with similar commercial recreation uses in a phased 
approach. The property is 8.86 acres in size and is zoned 
Commercial; commercial recreation is allowed by special 
permit. The property is located in a Special Flood Hazard 
Area as well as a Wetlands Upland Review Area.  
 
 
Site Plan 
 
The applicant intends to demolish the existing building and construct a new 16,663 sf. ft. game room 
and restaurant facility.  The applicant plans an outside gaming activity area for cornhole, volleyball, and 
bocce ball type events.  A small ice cream shop and a maintenance building is also planned. Initially, the 
existing go cart track and batting cages will be removed. The project plans to utilize existing, established 
parking areas. As the property falls in a special flood area, the site incorporates additional flood storage 
areas on the property. No new access points are proposed, with the site keeping the current drives from 
Hartford Turnpike and the commercial drive. Overall, there is a reduction of impervious surface from the 
existing condition by approximately 12,900 sq. ft. 
 
 



PZ 2020-11, 95 Hartford Tpke. 2 
October 1, 2020 
 
 

Above: Site Plan of Development 
 
Below: Conceptual Building elevations of main building facing Hartford Tpke. 

 
 



PZ 2020-11, 95 Hartford Tpke. 3 
October 1, 2020 
 
 

Special Permits 
 
The Applicant requests the following Special Permits: 
 

1. 4.9.4.6-Commercial recreation activities 
2. 4.9.4.1.15.4-Aggregate square footage over 25,000 s.f. 
3. 5.7.1-Commercial Structures in areas subject to flooding 
4. 5.7.2-Private open-type recreational uses in areas subject to flooding 
5. 15 and 5.7.5-Fill or excavation of land, generally, and within a special food area. 

 
In order to approve each special permit, the Commission must find that the applicant meets the relevant 
general special permit criteria of Section 17.3.1, specifically: 
 

17.3.1.1 It shall not create a hazardous condition relative to public health and safety; 
 
17.3.1.2 It shall be compatible with neighboring uses; 
 
17.3.1.3 It shall not create a nuisance; 
 
17.3.1.4 It shall not hinder the future sound development of the community; 
 
17.3.1.5 It shall conform to all applicable sections of this ordinance; 
 

Staff finds that these thresholds have been met by the Application. 
 
 
Staff Comments 
 
The Town Engineer is supportive of the added flood storage areas; the Zoning Official finds that the 
application and special permits are consistent with Town Regulations. 
 
The Town Planner recommends additional landscaping, canopy trees, and perimeter fencing in the area 
of the two existing parking lots to better separate the parking both visually and functionally from the 
recreational facilities. The applicant does intend to preserve a great majority of the exiting perimeter 
landscaping, along with the removal of a few large trees adjacent to the proposed main building.  
 
Regarding the issue of the future Hockanum River Linear Park (see page 4) raised by the Open Space 
Task Force and the Conservation Commission, Staff has raised the issue with the Applicant and 
recommends continued discussion with both the Applicant and the property owner. There is an 
opportunity to ensure this connection through the Golf Land facility, with potential benefits for the 
community and the business. 
 
 
 
 



PZ 2020-11, 95 Hartford Tpke. 4 
October 1, 2020 
 
 

Conservation Commission 
 
The Conservation Commission 
reviewed the item at their regular 
meeting on September 21, 2020. The 
Commission identified the site for a 
desired extension of the Hockanum 
River Linear Park with connections 
existing to the south into the Town of 
Manchester and portions to the north, 
north and west of I-84. The 
Commission recommended the 
applicant consider granting an 
easement which would enable future 
trail construction1. The POCD supports 
and encourages a robust greenway 
system, reflecting the policies of the 
Open Space System. 
 

  Proposed Open Space System-Open Space Task Force (1998/rev. 2019) 
 
Inland Wetlands Commission 
 
The Inlands Wetlands Commission reviewed the application for upland impacts at their September 22, 
2020 regular meeting. Although the site has been previously and significantly disturbed, the new project 
was deemed a significant activity, due to the amount of site grading. After a public hearing, the 
Commission approved a wetland permit for the project unanimously2. 
 
Design Review Commission 
 
The Design Review Commission reviewed the item at a meeting on September 23, 2020. The 
Commission recommended approval of the design elements, as submitted by the applicant3. 
 
Analysis 
 
The revival of Golf Land is a welcome addition to the Hartford Tpke. corridor. Staff finds the application 
meets the special permit standards (for all six respective items) set forth in the Zoning regulations. The 
Site Plan of Development, along with the recommended conditions, meets or exceeds the Site Plan 
expectations for development. Staff recommends the Applicant and property owner work with 
representatives of the Open Space Task Force to mutually secure future greenway opportunities 
associated with the Hockanum River Linear Park. 
 
                                                 
1 Conservation Commission Memorandum 9/21/20 
2 IWC Approval Letter 9/23/20 
3 Design Review Commission Memorandum 9/24/20 



PZ 2020-11, 95 Hartford Tpke. 5 
October 1, 2020 
 
 

Draft Motions 
 

A. I move that the Planning and Zoning Commission Approve PZ-2020-11, a Site Plan of 
Development with Special Permits located at 95 Hartford Tpke. This approval is based upon a 
finding the application meets the site plan requirements of Section 14 and that the special 
permits requested meet and exceed the review criteria set forth in Section 15 and Section 
17.3.1, and is subject to the conditions of approval dated October 1, 2020. 

OR 
B. I move [an alternate motion] 

 
Draft Conditions of Approval 
PZ 2020-11 95 Hartford Tpke. 

CT Golf Land LLC 
October 1, 2020 

 
1. The property shall be developed in substantial conformance with the Site Plan Set dated 8-15-

20, Revised through 9-10-20 (Sheets 1-4) Prepared Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC. 
 

2. The Property Shall be develop in substantial conformance to the Architectural Elevations dated 
9-1-20 (Main Building), 4-5-20 (Ice Cream Shop), prepared by Digital Quill Studio. 

 
3. Prior to the commencement of any site work, the applicant or his/her agent shall submit to the 

Town Planner an instrument of financial guarantee, as determined by the Town Engineer, in a 
form acceptable to the PZC for Erosion and Sedimentation Control. 

 
4. The above conditions are in addition to the standard conditions and stipulations for all site 

development projects. 
 

5.   
 

6.   
 
Or, 
 
MOVED, an Alternate Motion 
 
GKM 



 

 
TOWN OF VERNON 

 
Conservation Commission 

c/o Planning & Development Dept. 
55 West Main St., 2nd Floor 

Vernon, CT 06066 

TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 
Interim Town Planner   

 
FROM: Conservation Commission  
 
DATE:  September 21, 2020 
 
RE: Application (PZ-2020-11) of Connecticut Golf Land, LLC for a modification to a 

Site Plan of Development and a Series of Special Permits to modify and enhance 
a commercial recreation, family fun center located at 95 Hartford Turnpike 
(Assessor’s ID: Map #1, Block #158, Parcel #95) 

 
At our September 21, 2020 regular meeting, the Conservation Commission reviewed and discussed 
the application referenced above.  
 
Per Connecticut State Statute 7-131a(b), Conservation Commissions may make recommendations 
to zoning commissions, planning commissions, inland wetlands agencies and other municipal 
agencies on proposed land use changes. 
 
The Hockanum and Tankerhoosen Rivers constitute the approximate westerly and northerly 
boundaries of the above parcel, respectively. These two rivers are important natural, cultural, and 
recreational resources for Vernon, and are designated greenway corridors in the town’s Plan of 
Conservation & Development.  
 
At present the Hockanum River Linear Park trail system extends southward along the river corridor 
from the Town of Ellington to Tri City Plaza on Kelly Road. It likewise extends northerly from 
Manchester into Vernon, with a current terminus at the Hockanum River roadway bridge along the 
western parcel boundary. The portion of the trail from that bridge northward to Kelly Road remains 
incomplete.  
 
This Commission suggests the applicant or landowner consider a trail easement along the river 
channel corridor on the subject parcel. This would extend from the roadway bridge along the 
Hockanum River’s easterly bank, continue along the southerly bank of the Tankerhoosen, and cross 
the existing footbridge (which connects Subway and the former Par 3 golf course on the northerly 
side of the Tankerhoosen River). This easement would allow completion of the Hockanum River 
Linear Park within Vernon, and promote further enjoyment and stewardship of this invaluable 
natural resource. 
 



 

 

OFFICE OF THE 
TOWN PLANNER 

55 WEST MAIN STREET, VERNON, CT 06066 
(860) 870-3667 

gmcgregor@vernon-ct.gov 
 

TOWN OF VERNON 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Certified Mail 7017 0190 0001 1560 3234 
 
 
September 23, 2020 

 
 
Mr. Steve LaMesa 
2 Wilson Court 
Enfield CT, 06082 
 
 
Re: Approval of Application IWC-2020-06, CT Golf Land, LLC 
 
Dear Mr. LaMesa: 
 
At a meeting on September 22, 2020, The Town of Vernon Inland Wetlands Commission took the following 
action: 
 

APPROVED:  IWC-2020-06, Application of CT Golf Land LLC, for a Wetlands Permit for site grading, 
new construction, demolition, and other activities in an upland review area, on property located at 95 
Hartford Tpke. (Assessor ID: Map 1, Block 158, Parcel 00095). 
 

The Wetlands Permit is granted based on the Commission’s findings that the application presents no adverse 
impact to wetlands and watercourses as evaluated by the criteria of Section 10.2 of the Vernon Inland Wetlands 
Regulations and subject to the Site Plan of Development dated August 15, 2020, revised September 10, 2020, 
prepared by Gardner and Peterson. 
 
The permit shall expire on September 22, 2025, unless otherwise extend by the Inland Wetlands Commission. A 
recording certificate, to be filed with the Town Clerk, is enclosed. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
George K. McGregor, AICP 
 
cc. Mark Peterson 
   





APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

 
FROM: jkenny@vernon-ct.gov 
 
TO:  
 
DATE: 09/08/2020 
  
 APPLICANT: SUB PEAK OF CONNECTICUT INC 
  
 PROJECT: CT Golf Land 
  
 LOCATION: 95 HARTFORD TPKE   
 
 
My comments in regard to the application submitted to the Inland Wetland Commission (IWC) 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) are: 
 
_____ NO COMMENT 
 
_____  COMMENTS ATTACHED 
 
_____  PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: 
 
Development proposed is consistent with prior approved use and no additional curb cuts or parking 
areas are proposed.  No need for traffic authority review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________  DATE:____________________ 



APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

 
FROM: dsmith@vernon-ct.gov 
 
TO:  
 
DATE: 09/15/2020 
  
 APPLICANT: SUB PEAK OF CONNECTICUT INC 
  
 PROJECT: CT Golf Land 
  
 LOCATION: 95 HARTFORD TPKE   
 
 
My comments in regard to the application submitted to the Inland Wetland Commission (IWC) 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) are: 
 
_____ NO COMMENT 
 
_____  COMMENTS ATTACHED 
 
_____  PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: 
 
Plans provide an offsetting excavation to balance the minor fill proposed, resulting in no loss of flood 
storage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________  DATE:____________________ 



APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 

 
FROM: amarchese@vernon-ct.gov 
 
TO:  
 
DATE: 09/18/2020 
  
 APPLICANT: SUB PEAK OF CONNECTICUT INC 
  
 PROJECT: CT Golf Land 
  
 LOCATION: 95 HARTFORD TPKE   
 
 
My comments in regard to the application submitted to the Inland Wetland Commission (IWC) 
and/or Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) are: 
 
_____ NO COMMENT 
 
_____  COMMENTS ATTACHED 
 
_____  PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING COMMENTS: 
 
The proposed site plan appears to comply with the towns zoning regulations, if the current use of new 
car inventory is removed from the property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________  DATE:____________________ 


	PZC Agenda for 10-01-2020
	Minutes
	PZC Draft Minutes 09-17-2020
	Application 1
	APH PZC October 1 Applicant Packet
	274 Talcottville Rd PZC Application
	Renderings and Plans
	Survey and Engineering Sheets

	Staff Comments
	Staff memorandum and attachments APH Hairstylists
	PZ-2020-10 Staff Report
	Applicant Response to Chief Kenny Comments 9-24-20
	Applicant Response to Engineering Comments 9-24-20
	Applicant Response to Zoning Comments 9-24-20
	DRC memorandum

	Application 2
	CT Golf Land Oct 1 2020 PZC Application Packet
	CT Golf Land 09-10-2020
	Landscape-Lighting 09-10-2020
	Lighting Fixtures
	CT Golf Land Conceptual Aerial View
	CT Golf Land Facade Elevations
	Maintenance Building Sample Photo
	Maintence Building Architectural
	ICE CREAM SHOP_Page_1
	ICE CREAM SHOP_Page_5

	Staff Comments
	Staff memorandum and Attachements CT Golf Land
	PZC 2020-11 Staff Memorandum
	PZ-2020-11 CC Comment (CT Golf Land LLC)
	approval letter IWC 2020-06 95 Hartford Tpke
	DRC Memorandum 9-24-20
	Police Chief Comments
	Town Engineer Comments
	Zoning Comments-2020-09-21-2-25-21


	Catalog Number: 
	Notes: 
	Type: 
	LEDs: 
	Color Temp: 
	Distributuion: 
	Voltage: 
	Mounting: 
	Control Options: 
	Other Options: 
	Finish: 


